
South Bay Cities Council of Governments 

Steering Committee 
Monday, December 8, 2025 

SBCCOG Office 
In person and virtually via Zoom 

357 Van Ness Way #90 
Torrance, CA 90501   

AGENDA 

I. CONFIRM THE QUORUM – 12:00 noon

II. REPORT OF POSTING OF THE AGENDA
◼ ACTION: Receive and file

III. ANNOUNCEMENTS OF ANY CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT – 12:05 pm

V. CONSENT CALENDAR – action items noted, remainder are receive & file – 12:10 pm
A. November 3, 2025 Steering Committee meeting minutes – attached (Pages 5-8)

◼ ACTION: Approve

B. Resolution 2025-4 – to submit a Proposition 68 Lower Los Angeles River (LLAR) Grant

Program Application to the San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers and Mountains

Conservancy (RMC)
◼ Resolution attached (Page 9)

◼ ACTION:  Approve

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
The Public Comment portion of the meeting is the Public’s opportunity to provide comments on non-agenda 
items within the jurisdiction of the SBCCOG/cities and each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. Comments 
on agenda items may be made following the staff report on the item and each speaker is limited to three (3) 
minutes per item. Time allotments may be reduced due to time constraints at the discretion of the Chair. 
When called on, please state: Your name and residence and the organization you represent, if appropriate. 
Written comments are also accepted by 11:00 am the day of the meeting via e-mail to 
natalie@southbaycities.org  Both written and oral comments will be part of the official record.  

SBCCOG Board Members: 
Pursuant to the end of the State’s COVID-19 emergency declaration, your attendance is required to 

be in-person or follow the provisions of AB 2449 available here 
If unable to attend in person but want to vote virtually, let SBCCOG staff know using the form: 

https://forms.office.com/r/47wQggsvf9?origin=lprLink 

ACCESSING THE MEETING: 
For the public and guests, receive Zoom meeting credentials in advance by using the below link to RSVP: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZcsce6orD0pGda5p_4pKbh3J1EqKDlJgaSY#/registration 
OR visit https://zoom.us/join or dial (669) 444-9171 and use Meeting ID: 831 6702 6332; Passcode: 
505171 

1

mailto:natalie@southbaycities.org
https://forms.office.com/r/47wQggsvf9
https://forms.office.com/r/47wQggsvf9?origin=lprLink
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZcsce6orD0pGda5p_4pKbh3J1EqKDlJgaSY#/registration
https://zoom.us/join


C. Messaging Privacy Policy and Terms & Conditions

◼ Memos attached (Pages 11-13)

◼ ACTION:  Approve

D. New Job Position for a Financial Analyst

◼ Memo attached (Pages 15-18)

◼ ACTION:  Approve

E. Agreement with Jackson Lewis P.C. for Specialized Labor and Employment Legal Services

◼ Memos attached (Pages 19-28)

◼ ACTION:  Approve

F. Issuance of Cashier’s Check for Dominguez Channel Services

◼ Memo attached (Page 29)

◼ ACTION:  Approve

G. Metro Service Council

◼ A unanimous vote was taken at the last meeting to change the time and date to the first

Monday of each month at 5pm. The change will be made with the January meeting as they will

be dark for December

H. Progress re: JPA agreement approvals

◼ 5 Approvals – Hermosa Beach, Lawndale, Lomita, Rolling Hills Rolling Hills Estates

I. Pending Grants

◼ Biodiversity Grant –1st review complete, we have been asked to submit formal application

◼ Caltrans Sustainable Grant - application submitted in November

J. Monthly Reports – Receive and File

◼ City Attendance at SBCCOG Meetings – attached (Page 31)
◼ Client Aid Recap Report – attached (Pages 33-34)

◼ Time Limited Subsidy Recap Report – attached (Pages 35-36)

VI. ACTION ITEMS

K. Homeless Services – 12:20 pm
◼ Working capital fund for non-profits
◼ Budget Modification:  Measure H Carry-Over Funds – memo attached (Pages 37-39)
◼ Financial Consultant to analyze housing projects for LACAHSA funds

o Proposal review and possible interviews in process – recommendation to be provided at
the meeting

◼ ACTION:  Approve Measure H Budget Modification and Financial Consultant

L. Board Meeting Agenda Development – 12:35 pm

◼ January
o Classification and Compensation Study Results
o West Basin Municipal Water District re: grass replacement
o Baldwin Hills Conservancy Update
o Time Limited Subsidy program re-cap or February

2



◼ February
o Our County Sustainability Plan presentation
o Cool Roofs Study presentation
o LA Air Force Base update – invite Commander
o Housing Trust Update and Recommendation

◼ Special meeting possibilities
o Harbor-UCLA Tour of new facilities
o Torrance Refinery

M. Legislation – 12:40 pm
◼ A new legislative session is starting January 5, 2026
◼ Legislative Briefing – January 8 and Meet and Greet is January 30.
◼ ACTION: Cancel January 8?

 Discuss possible legislation to send to our representatives to advance our programs  

N. Approval of Invoices – attached – 12:50 pm
◼ ACTION: Approve invoices for payment

VII. INFORMATION ITEMS
O. Meeting with LA Councilman McOsker – 12:55 pm

◼ Report on November 21 meeting attended by Bernadette Suarez, Ray Jackson, Rodney

Tanaka and Jacki Bacharach

P. General Assembly Update – 1:05 pm
◼ Sponsors, Speakers, Site

Q. Update on the Local Travel Network & E-Bike Safety Issues – 1:15 pm

R. Land Use and Transportation Update & REAP – 1:20 pm
◼ Housing Trust Feasibility Study – cost vs. Benefit
◼ Commercial Redevelopment
◼ Micro-Mobility Hubs

S. South Bay Environmental Services Center Activities – attached (Pages 41-47) – 1:30 pm

T. SBFN – 1:40 pm
◼ Update on status of the network and the transition

U. Update on Senior Services – 1:45 pm

VIII. STRATEGIC POSITIONING ITEMS/ANNOUNCEMENTS AND UPDATES – 1:50 pm
◼ December 11 – Energy and Climate Recognition Awards Luncheon – flyer attached (Page 49)
◼ January 22, 2026 - Cybersecurity Presentation – flyer attached (Pages 51-52)
◼ January 30, 2026 – Meet and Greet with the South Bay Legislators

IX. NEXT STEERING COMMITTEE – Monday, January 12, 2026 @ 12:00 noon – SBCCOG office

X. ADJOURNMENT

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

4



South Bay Cities Council of Governments 
 

  Steering Committee 
Monday, November 3, 2025 

Minutes 

 
Attendees:  Bernadette Suarez, Chair (Lawndale); Bill Uphoff, 1st Vice Chair (Lomita); 
Ray Jackson, 2nd Vice Chair (Hermosa Beach); Chris Pimentel – left at 12:38pm (El 
Segundo); Nina Tarnay (Manhattan Beach); Craig Quinn (Palos Verdes Estates); Zein 
Obagi (Redondo Beach); Britt Huff (Rolling Hills Estates); Annette Owens (Public); Jacki 
Bacharach, Kim Fuentes, Wally Siembab, Natalie Champion, David Leger, Ronson Chu, 
Jake Romoff (SBCCOG) 
 

I. CONFIRM THE QUORUM – 12:00 noon 
 

II. REPORT OF POSTING OF THE AGENDA 
n ACTION: ReceiveD and fileD 

 
III. ANNOUNCEMENTS OF ANY CHANGES TO THE AGENDA – PRESENTATION ON THE HOUSING 

TRUST 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT – 12:05 pm 
 

V. CONSENT CALENDAR – action items noted, remainder are receive & file – 12:10 pm  
A. October 13, 2025 Steering Committee meeting minutes – attached   

n     ACTION: ApproveD UPHOFF/JACKSON 
  

   B. Contract amendment with Lackow Planning 
n     Amendment attached 
n     ACTION:  RecommendED Board approval 

 
   C.  Contract for General Counsel Legal Services 

n    Contract attached 
n     ACTION:  RecommendED Board approval 

 
   D.  Contract Amendment with Apple One Temporary Employment Services 

n     Amendment attached 
n     ACTION:  RecommendED Board approval 

 
   E.  Progress re: JPA agreement approvals 

n     On Council agendas in Lawndale and Lomita 
 
   F. Pending Grants  

n Biodiversity Grant – concept review is pending agency questions 
n Caltrans Sustainable Grant - application to be submitted in November 
 

   G. Monthly Reports – Receive and File 
n City Attendance at SBCCOG Meetings – attached   

5



n Client Aid Recap Report – attached  
n Time Limited Subsidy Recap Report – attached   
 

VI. ACTION ITEMS 
H. Scheduling a meeting with LA Councilman McOsker   12:15 pm 

n     The request for a meeting was made immediately after the last Steering Committee meeting 
n     As of 10/29/25, although we have been informally told he will meet with us, there has been 

 no  communication from his scheduler or any other follow-up 
n     ACTION:  Continue to work on scheduling the meeting 
 

   I.  Homeless Services – 12:20 pm 
n     Contract with Harbor Connects  

o Memo attached (Pages ) 
n    PRESENTATION ON THE TRUST.  1ST YEAR MEASURE A FUNDS CAN PAY THE COST 

BUT IT’S ULTIMATELY A TRUST BOARD DECISION FOR FUTURE YEARS.  LACAHSA 
FUNDING AND BOARD COMPOSITION DEPENDS ON HOW MANY CITIES JOIN.  BOARD 
WILL BE TECHNICAL. IT WAS AGREED THAT IT WOULD BE GOOD TO ALLOW   NON-
ELECTED ALTERNATES. 

n   OTHER QUESTIONS TO BE DETERMINED - # OF PEOPLE ON THE BOARD, COUNTY 
JOIN? 

n   CONSIDER A SPECIAL BOARD MEETING FOR ALL ELECTEDS AND CITY MANAGERS 
AND COMMUNITY DIRECTORS 

n   CONSIDER THE HAWTHORNE/INGLEWOOD PROJECTS WHICH COULD TAKE 
ADVANTAGE OF THE THIS YEAR’S PPO FUNDING 

n   ACTION:  RecommendED Board approval of Harbor Connects contract - UPHOFF/QUINN 
n   ACTION:  DETERMINE IF LEGISLATION IS NEEDED TO ALLOW FOR NON-ELECTED 

ALTERNATES ON THE TRUST BOARD.   

J.  Board Meeting Agenda Development – 12:25 pm 

n November 20 – draft agenda attached – one week early (Pages ) 
o Volunteer Recognition 
o Discussion of the proposed housing trust  
o WSPA re: impacts of some of the refinery closures (both confirmed and rumored) on the   
   state and particularly the South Bay 

n January 
o Classification and Compensation Study 
o Baldwin Hills Conservancy Update 
o Cool Roofs Study presentation 

n February 
o Our County Sustainability Plan presentation 

n Special meeting possibilities 
o Alta Sea Wave Project 
o Sanitation District Water Treatment Plant Tour 
o Harbor-UCLA Tour of new facilities   

 
K.  General Assembly location and Speaker Suggestions – 12:30 pm 

n   Quotes from venues are still being collected.  They will be available at the meeting and the   
     staff will have a recommendation 

6



n   ACTION:  AFTER REVIEW OF THE QUOTES, IT WAS AGREED TO SELECT THE 
WESTDRIFT HOTEL IN MANHATTAN BEACH 

 
L.   Legislation – 12:40 pm 

n    A new legislative session is starting 
n    ACTION:  Possible legislation to send to our representatives to advance our  
     Programs 
• HOUSING OVERLAYS 
• RELIEF FROM HCD PENALTIES ON RHNA 
• PILOT FOR REBATES FOR MICROMOBILITY VEHICLES 
• ISP INTERNET TAXES – 1% IN CITY ROW 

 
M.  Approval of Invoices – attached (Pages ) – 12:50 pm 

n ACTION: ApproveD invoices for payment  UPHOFF/JACKSON 
 

VII. INFORMATION ITEMS 
N. Update on the Local Travel Network & E-Bike Safety Issues – 12:55 pm   

n VERY SUCCESSFUL PRESENTATION TO HAWTHORNE CITY COUNCIL ABOUT THE 
VIRTUES OF THE LTN AND THEY EXPRESSED INTEREST IN DISCUSSING THIS 
FURTHER FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

 
WS – COSTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE – NEXT 10 REPORT.  CHILD BORN 2024 
WILL PAY $500,000 TO $1 MILLION IN THEIR LIFETIME FOR CLIMATE 
RELATED COSTS 
 

O.  Land Use and Transportation Update & REAP – 1:00 pm  
n Housing Trust Feasibility Study – cost vs. Benefit - DISCUSSED PREVIOUSLY 
n     Commercial Redevelopment – BETA TOOL BEING PREPARED FOR CITIES 
n     Micro-Mobility Hubs - SITE SELECTION UNDERWAY 

 
   P. South Bay Environmental Services Center Activities – attached (Pages ) – 1:10 pm 

n    Capture the Cold Technology program – 7 CITIES INTERESTED – THIS PROVIDES A  
      PIECE OF EQUIPMENT TO REDUCE AC COSTS CONNECTED TO HVAC UNIT 
n    Report on the Technology Showcase for Members and Partners – October 29 - 8 CITY  
      REPRESENTATIVES & LA SAN DIST.; 6 VENDORS.  PRE-APPROVED BY LA COUNTY  
     TRADE ALLIES 
n DECEMBER 11 – RECOGNITION LUNCH 

  
  Q. SBFN – 1:20 pm 

n     Update on status of the network and the transition – WAITING FOR FINANCIAL 
       INFORMATION FROM POSSIBLE BUYER 

  
    R.  Update on Senior Services – 1:25 pm 

n  NOVEMBER MEETING TO BE CANCELLED – NEXT MEETING JANUARY 27 
 
   S.  Pending Issues – 1:30 pm 

n Making Office Space available – NOTHING TO REPORT.  NO CURRENT INTEREST 
 

n BALLOT PROCESSING TOUR – GREAT TOUR 

7



n AI FORUM SERIES – MIX OF PEOPLE – LOOKING AT POLICIES FIRST.  MORE 
EDUCATION TOO  AND WHAT ARE CITIES USING IT FOR.  MEETING QUARTERLY 

§ RAY- PERMIT REVIEWS WITH AI – LOOK AT THAT 
 

n FAN ZONES IN OUR CITIES??? - MB HAS SUBCOMMITTEE IN THEIR CITY RE: 
OLYMPICS – CENTRALLY LOCATED VIEWING PARTIES 

FIFA WILL BE A TEST.  NO SPECIAL THINGS FOR IT BUT LEARN FROM IT.  ALSO 
NEED AN OFFICIAL LA 28 SPONSOR, NOT JUST ANYONE TO SPONSOR 
 
CAN ASK AT THE BOARD BUT CITIES ARE DOING THIS ON THEIR OWN 
 
HOSPITALITY HOUSES ARE COUNTRY SPECIFIC AND NOT PUBLIC 

 
n SCAG PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN – DOESN'T MENTION COG’S.   

o WILL COMMENT 
Page 6 – who engages with SCAG 
PAGE 11 – TRANSPARENCY - Staff will also document, summarize, and report on public 
comments received through public engagement activities. This process demonstrates 
that input has been meaningfully considered and supports accountability and 
transparency in SCAG’s decision-making.  DOESN’T SAY THAT THEY ARE DOING 
ANYTHING WITH THE COMMENTS.   
 

n BOARD MEMBER OBAGI SHARED AN INVITATION FOR AN AIR TAXI HELICOPTER 
EVENT AT THE HAWTHORNE AIRPORT 

n  
n THERE WAS A DISCUSSION OF A FUTURE TOUR OF THE TORRANCE REFINERY 

 
VIII. STRATEGIC POSITIONING ITEMS/ANNOUNCEMENTS AND UPDATES – 1:35 pm 
 

n November 20 – Office Open House and Volunteer Reception – flyer attached (Page 49) 
n December 11 – Energy and Climate Recognition Awards Luncheon – flyer attached (Page 51) 
n January 22 - Cybersecurity Presentation 

 
IX. NEXT STEERING COMMITTEE – Monday, December 8, 2025 @ 12:00 noon – SBCCOG office 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT – 1:45 PM 

 

8



RESOLUTION 2025-4 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAY CITIES COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS TO SUBMIT 
A PROPOSITION 68 LOWER LOS ANGELES RIVER (LLAR) GRANT PROGRAM 

APPLICATION TO THE SAN GABRIEL AND LOWER LOS ANGELES RIVERS AND 
MOUNTAINS CONSERVANCY (RMC) 

WHEREAS, the South Bay Cities Council of Governments recognizes the benefits of and need for a 
regional plan to guide member cities to maximize biodiversity benefits through landscaping on public 
lands; and 

WHEREAS, the RMC is accepting applications for funding through the LLAR grant program; and 

WHEREAS, the South Bay Cities Council of Governments desires to participate in this grant program to 
the greatest extent possible as a means of providing necessary regional biodiversity and habitat planning 
and recommendations for properties owned by SBCCOG member cities and agencies; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed project would result in the creation of a regional biodiversity plan and several 
small demonstration projects; and  

WHEREAS, the Proposition 68 LLAR grant program will provide adequate funding for the plan 
development and the pilot installations should the grant funds be awarded; and  

NOW, therefore, be it resolved that the South Bay Cities Council of Governments authorizes the 
submittal of the application to the RMC for funds to execute the development of a biodiversity plan and 
the installation of pilot landscaping projects. 

Be it further resolved that the South Bay Cities Council of Governments is authorized to accept a grant 
award not to exceed $1,600,000, and that the Board Chair, (currently Lawndale Councilmember 
Bernadette Suarez) acting for the South Bay Cities Council of Governments is hereby authorized and 
empowered to execute in the name of the South Bay Cities Council of Governments, all necessary 
contracts and agreements, and amendments hereto, to implement and carry out the purposes specified in 
the application.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED by the South Bay Cities Council of 
Governments this Monday, December 8, 2025, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________     _____________________ 
Chair, Board of Directors      Jacki Bacharach, Board Secretary 
 

9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

10



   
 

   
 

South Bay Cities Council of Governments   
           
December 8, 2025 
 

 
To:   SBCCOG Steering Committee 
     
From:  Jacki Bacharach, Executive Director 
  Kim Fuentes, Deputy Executive Director 
  David Leger, Program Manager 
 
Re:          Messaging Privacy Policy and Terms & Conditions  
 
BACKGROUND 
Mobile cellular carriers require companies using “application to person” messaging to register 
their brand and campaigns with a Campaign Registry before SMS text messaging can be 
enabled.  This requirement aims to comply with new regulations and protect consumers from 
spam.  Although not required if SMS service is provided by the carrier directly, it is required for 
all VOIP services including GoTo which the SBCCOG utilizes.   
 
Despite the SBCCOG not sending marketing-related SMS messages and only using SMS to 
communicate via text message with city staff and partners as necessary, the SBCCOG was still 
required to register its campaign and brand with the Campaign Registry.  Part of the registration 
process includes having very specific privacy policies and terms & conditions.  To meet this 
requirement, SBCCOG staff developed a messaging-specific privacy policy and terms & 
conditions which are included as Exhibit 1.   
 
These have been approved by the Campaign Registry and the SBCCOG is cleared to use SMS 
messaging to communicate as described.   
 
The SBCCOG’s existing privacy policy that was adopted in April covers communications from 
the organization including e-newsletters and marketing/promotion of partner workshops and 
events.  Due to the significant differences in the use-cases for the SMS text messaging compared 
to the email communications (general communication vs. marketing), a separate standalone 
policy and terms & conditions was the best approach to receive approval for the text messaging 
features.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the Messaging Privacy Policy and Terms & Conditions. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Exhibit 1 – Messaging Privacy Policy and Terms & Conditions 
 
                    

11



MESSAGING PRIVACY POLICY  
 

Effective Date: November 1, 2025  
The South Bay Cities Council of Governments (“we,” “us,” “our”) respects your privacy and is 
committed to protecting your personal information. This Privacy Policy explains how the South 
Bay Cities Council of Governments collects and uses information about you when you opt-in to 
receive SMS messages from us.   
 
Information We Collect  
When you opt-in to receive SMS messages, we collect:  

• Your phone number  
• Consent to send SMS messages  
• Your messaging history   

 
How We Collect Your Information  
We may collect your information directly from you, such as when you complete a form or contact 
us or automatically, such as when you interact with our website.  
 
How We Use Your Information  
We use your information to:  

• Send you the SMS messages you’ve opted in to receive  
• Provide updates, promotions, or other relevant content based on your 
preferences  
• Choices and Controls  
• To operate our business   

 
You can opt out of receiving SMS messages at any time by replying STOP to any message we 
send you. You can review our Terms for additional information about the opt-out process 
available here: https://southbaycities.org/about/governing-documents/policies.  
 
To Whom We Disclose Your Information  
Your privacy is important to us. We do not share your personal information, phone number, or 
SMS consent opt-in data with third parties or affiliates for marketing or promotional purposes.  
We may disclose your information to our affiliated companies; to third party service providers, 
business advisors, or consultants who provide services to us; in connection with a merger, 
acquisition, reorganization, restructuring, financing transaction or sale of assets; as required by 
law or administrative order; and to assert claims or rights or to defend against claims. 
 
Protection of Information  
We take steps to protect your information against unauthorized use or disclosure.   
 
Updates  
We may periodically update this privacy policy. If we make material changes that have a 
substantive and adverse impact on your privacy, we will provide notice on this website prior to 
the change becoming effective. We encourage you to periodically review this page for the latest 
information about our privacy practices.  
 
How to Contact Us   
You can reach us by texting the word HELP for support to 310-371-7222. You may also contact 
us directly at info@southbaycities.org or 310-371-7222.  

EXHIBIT 1

12

https://southbaycities.org/about/governing-documents/policies
mailto:info@southbaycities.org


MESSAGING TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 

Effective Date: November 1, 2025 
By opting in to receive conversational SMS messages from the South Bay Cities Council of 
Governments (“we,” “us,” “our”), you agree to these Terms and Conditions (Terms).  
 
SMS Messaging Service  
By providing your phone number, you consent to receive conversational SMS text messages 
from the South Bay Cities Council of Governments.  You may receive customer care messages 
such as appointment reminders, program and project updates, and general two-way 
communication about the South Bay Cities Council of Governments’ programs and 
partnerships. Message and Data Rates may apply.  
 
Message Frequency  
You will get more than one message from us unless you opt-out, and while messaging 
frequency varies, you will likely receive up to 4 messages per month.  The South Bay Cities 
Council of Governments reserves the right to alter the frequency of messages at any time to 
increase or decrease the total number of messages. The South Bay Cities Council of 
Governments and carriers are not liable for delays or undelivered messages.  
 
Message and Data Rates  
Message and data rates may apply based on your mobile carrier’s terms.  
 
Privacy Policy  
Your information will be handled in accordance with our Privacy Policy available here: 
https://southbaycities.org/about/governing-documents/policies.  
 
Cancellation/Opt-Out Instructions  
You can opt out of receiving SMS messages at any time by replying STOP to any message we 
send you. After you opt out of text messaging, you will receive one additional message 
confirming your request has been processed.   
 
Help/Customer Support  
Text the word HELP for support. You may also contact us directly at info@southbaycities.org or 
310-371-7222.  
 
Liability  
We are not responsible for any charges, errors, or delays in SMS delivery or undelivered 
messages caused by your carrier or third-party service providers.  

13

https://southbaycities.org/about/governing-documents/policies
mailto:info@southbaycities.org


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

14



South Bay Cities Council of Governments 

 

December 8, 2025 

TO:  SBCCOG Steering Committee 

FROM: Jacki Bacharach, Executive Director    

SUBJECT: New Job Description & Salary Range – Financial Analyst 

 

BACKGROUND  

The South Bay Cities Council of Governments (SBCCOG) continues to expand programs and 

funding resulting in significant growth, including most recently, the addition of the new Measure 

A homeless services funds and related programs.  Proactively, in July 2025, the Board authorized 

a classification and compensation study to address organizational and program growth.  That 

study is currently underway with recommendations expected in January 2026 for Board review 

and consideration of approval.  

 

In the meantime, it has become clear that the finance function needs immediate assistance of 

additional staff to help address the surge of funding and contracts being generated.  Currently, 

the SBCCOG finance function has an Administrative Officer and one Administrative Assistant 

along with a contracted accounting firm to conduct all the finance related functions including 

payroll, accounting, invoicing, payment processing, budget, audit, contract and program 

tracking, etc.  This team is too small for the volume of work they are managing. 

 

ANALYSIS 

Working with the human resources firm currently conducting the classification and 

compensation study, SBCCOG staff assessed needs and reviewed similar agency positions.  It 

was determined that a new position was required to meet the existing and growing needs of the 

finance function – Financial Analyst.  This exempt at-will position would report to the 

Administrative Officer (Finance Manager) and work closely with the project/program managers 

to manage general ledger functions, grant accounting, invoicing, reconciliations, financial 

reporting, and support budget development in compliance with General Accepted Accounting 

Principles and funding requirements (full description and qualifications on Attachment A).   Due 

to the level of responsibility and required experience and skills, the recommended salary range is 

$84,881-$105,472.  This position range is the same as the current Senior Project Manager 

position.   

 

Approval at this December Board meeting, ahead of the classification and compensation study 

recommendations, will allow the SBCCOG staff to begin recruitment – as this can be a long 

process.  If approved, this new position will be incorporated into the final classification and 

compensation study report. 

 

Also, note that at least 50% of the cost of this position will be charged to Measure A and 

possibly more after additional budget analysis is done. 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

Approve new Financial Analyst job description with a salary range of $84,881-$105,472.   
  

15



Attachment A 

 

SOUTH BAY CITIES COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS (SBCCOG) 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

FINANCIAL ANALYST 

 

JOB SUMMARY 

This professional-level position performs technical and complex accounting, auditing, budgeting, 

invoicing, financial reporting, and analytical work in support of the organization’s programs and 

operations. The Financial Analyst manages general ledger functions, grant accounting, forecasting, 

reconciliations, financial reporting, and supports budget development; coordinates with program 

managers, granting agencies, and partner organizations to ensure compliance with General Accepted 

Accounting Principles (GAAP) and funding requirements; provides analytical support, prepares financial 

statements, and assists with audit preparation. The Financial Analyst may provide training and instruction 

to lower-level financial, administrative, and accounting staff; participates in policy, procedural, and 

process improvements; may serve as a back-up in the absence of the Finance Manager. 

 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 

This position is the professional-level classification responsible for performing the full range of technical 

and complex accounting, auditing, budgeting, and analytical work. This classification is distinguished from 

the next higher classification of Finance Manager in that the latter has overall responsibility for the 

Finance Function and overall responsibility for planning, organizing, and directing the accounting and 

finance functions for SBCCOG. 

 

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Under the direction of the Finance Manager, the Financial Analyst will: 

• Perform financial activities consistent with GAAP, including general ledger accounting, accounts 

payable, accounts receivable, and budget support. 

• Compile and analyze financial data; prepare journal entries, financial statements, reports, and 

reconciliations. 

• Coordinate grant budgets, prepare invoices, including related reporting, track and reconcile 

consultant and program expenditures. 

• Prepare monthly, quarterly, and annual financial reports for funding agencies. 

• Support audit preparation and financial reporting processes; assist with the annual and mid-year 

budgets. 

• Serve as budget liaison to assigned program and project managers; monitor and forecast revenues 

and expenditures. 

• Monitor legislation, regulations, and industry practices in assigned program areas; recommend 

policy and procedural updates. 

• Provide training and instruction to staff as requested. 

• Develop and maintain positive working relationships with internal staff, agencies, and the public. 

• Conduct cash flow monitoring and assist with treasury and banking coordination. 

• Review and monitor internal control processes and recommend improvements. 

• Perform cost allocation analyses and support development of indirect cost rates. 

16



• Review financial components of contracts and procurements for funding availability and 

compliance. 

• Monitor non‑grant revenue streams, billing accuracy, and reconcile revenue activities. 

• Document financial procedures, workflows, and updates to finance-related practices. 

• Support year‑end close activities, including accruals, adjustments, and schedule preparation. 

• Assist with financial system reporting, configuration needs, and user testing. 

• Attend training, meetings, and conferences. 

• Performs related duties as assigned. 

 

CLASSIFICATION 

The position is exempt under the Fair Labor Standards Act.   

 

QUALIFICATIONS 

Education and Experience 

A Bachelor’s degree in accounting, finance, business administration, or related field, and at least three 

(3) years of increasingly responsible professional accounting experience, preferably in local 

government. Experience with grant-funded programs is desirable. 

Knowledge of: 

Municipal and fund accounting principles and practices consistent with GAAP; governmental 

budgeting methods, financial reporting requirements, and audit procedures; general ledger structure 

and accounting cycles; accounts payable and accounts receivable processes; grant accounting 

requirements, reimbursement rules, and invoicing standards; budget schedules and documentation 

requirements; internal control practices; reconciliation methods; procurement and contract 

processes; audit procedures; ethical standards and confidentiality requirements. 

 

Skill to: 

Perform complex professional accounting work and make appropriate and effective 

recommendations; prepare journal entries, reconciliations, financial statements, and reports;; 

prepare grant and funding reports; develop grant budgets and reimbursement requests; interpret 

funding requirements; identify discrepancies and recommend corrective actions; coordinate with 

program managers, granting agencies, auditors, and staff; manage multiple deadlines; use accounting 

software and spreadsheets effectively; establish and maintain effective working relationships with 

others. 

 

Ability to: 

Perform complex mathematical calculations and financial analyses accurately and timely; apply GAAP 

and governmental accounting standards; assist in the development of and monitor budgets; prepare 

accurate audit and budget documentation; identify and implement process improvements; 

communicate clearly in written and verbal form; organize work and meet deadlines; exercise 

discretion and sound judgment; work collaboratively and independently; build cooperative 

relationships. 

 

Licenses and/or Certifications 

Must possess a valid California Driver’s License.  

 

Physical Requirements and Working Conditions 

17



While performing the duties of this job, the employee is required to sit and talk or hear and use a 

telephone and a personal computer with a VDT screen for extended periods of time. The employee is 

required to drive to various locations, may be required to work outdoors and be exposed to variable 

weather conditions and noise levels. The employee is occasionally required to stand, walk, stoop, 

kneel, and use arms, legs, and back to lift and/or move up to 25 pounds. 

 

Job description statements describe the general nature and level of work performed by employees and 

are not intended as an exhaustive list of all responsibilities, duties and skills required. 

 
Date: November 2025 

 

 

 

18



   
 

   
 

South Bay Cities Council of Governments   
           
December 8, 2025 
 

 
To:   SBCCOG Steering Committee 
     
From:  Jacki Bacharach, Executive Director 
  Kim Fuentes, Deputy Executive Director 
  David Leger, Program Manager 
 
Re:  Retention of Jackson Lewis P.C. for Specialized Labor and Employment Legal 

Services 
 
BACKGROUND 
Over the past several years, the South Bay Cities Council of Governments (SBCCOG) has paid 
for specialized labor and employment legal services through Best Best & Krieger (BBK).  Over 
that time, Shauna R. Amon, Attorney at Law, at BBK developed an in-depth understanding of 
the SBCCOG and our employment policies.  Earlier this year, Ms. Amon left BBK and now 
works for Jackson Lewis P.C. SBCCOG staff have been very pleased with the services and 
advice provided by the attorney. 
 
SBCCOG staff have been presented with a choice of establishing the understanding and 
relationship with a new attorney at BBK or continuing to utilize Ms. Amon through her new 
position at Jackson Lewis.  If the SBCCOG was to remain with BBK, their new attorney’s hourly 
rate would be $395.  If the SBCCOG retains Ms. Amon’s services through Jackson Lewis, the 
hourly rate is $400.  Due to negligible difference in hourly rates and her intimate and extensive 
understanding of the organization, SBCCOG staff recommends retaining the services of Ms. 
Amon through Jackson Lewis.   
 
SBCCOG Legal Counsel Michael Jenkins has reviewed the engagement letter provided by 
Jackson Lewis which is attached as Exhibit 1. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Retain the services of Jackson Lewis P.C. for labor and employment related legal services.  
 
Attachment: 
Exhibit 1 – Engagement Letter                

19



Jackson Lewis P.C. 

Shauna.amon@jacksonlewis.com

Phone: (619) 573 - 4905 

jacksonlewis.com 

December 1, 2025 

VIA EMAIL  
Bernadette Suarez 
SBCCOG Chair 
South Bay Cities Council of Governments 
357 Van Ness Way, Suite 110 
Torrance, CA 90501  

kim@southbaycities.org  

Re: Confirmation of Engagement and Fee Agreement 

Dear Bernadette: 

We are pleased that the South Bay Cities Council of Government’s (the 
“Organization”) has chosen to retain Jackson Lewis P.C. (the “Firm”) for legal services for labor 
and employment law advice and counsel.  This letter details the scope of our client relationship 
and outlines the fees for our services.  Thank you for choosing us.  

A. Scope of Services

As we discussed, we will represent the Organization in providing labor and 
employment law advice and counsel. We will do our best to serve the Organization efficiently.  
While we cannot guarantee the success or outcome of any given matter, we will strive to vigorously 
represent the Organization. I will have primary responsibility for handling this matter and will use 
other attorneys and other members of our professional staff, such as paralegals, eDiscovery 
attorneys, data scientists, data statisticians, data analysts, in the firm in the best exercise of my 
professional judgment.  If, at any time, you have any questions, concerns, or comments, please 
contact me. 

B. Fees

We charge for our time on an hourly basis, in one-tenth hour increments.  We will 
invoice the Organization at our rates for this engagement for the work performed on the 
Organization’s behalf.  Our schedule of hourly rates for attorneys and other members of our 
professional staff such as paralegals, eDiscovery attorneys, data scientists, data statisticians, data 
analysts, is based on years of experience, area of expertise, level of professional attainment and 
geographic location. 

EXHIBIT 1

20

http://www.jacksonlewis.com/
mailto:kim@southbaycities.org


Bernadette Suarez 
December 1, 2025 

Page 2 
 

My current hourly rate is $400.  Any associates that assist with this matter will have 
a blended rate of $380 per hour. Currently, our hourly rates in the San Diego office range from 
$295 to $915 for attorneys.  I will have primary responsibility for handling this matter and will be 
working with such other attorneys of our firm to represent the Organization effectively and 
efficiently.  Firm hourly rates may be subject to periodic increases over time.  The Firm agrees to 
provide the Organization with sixty days’ notice to any changes in billing rates. 

The Firm requires all clients to pay our invoices by wire or ACH transfer, or by 
check.  These instructions are listed at the bottom of the first and last pages of each invoice.  The 
Firm does not accept payment by cryptocurrency of any sort.  Our entire billing process is 
explained in the enclosed “A Word About Our Invoices.” 

C. Disbursements 

Disbursements advanced by us on the Organization’s behalf, such as court 
reporters, expert witnesses, electronic discovery related expenses incurred by the Firm or with 
vendors, including costs for collection, processing, hosting software review, and production of 
Electronically Stored Information (ESI), messenger service, and delivery charges where material 
must be sent by certified or registered mail or by express mail or package carrier will be billed 
back to the Organization.  We generally request reimbursement for travel-related expenses, 
including lodging, meals, air travel, ground transportation, and related expenses.  We also request 
reimbursement for photocopying costs. 

D. Client Cooperation 

The Organization understands and agrees that, for us to represent it effectively, it 
is necessary for the Organization to assist and cooperate with the Firm.  The Organization agrees 
to (1) make itself (including its employees if applicable) available to discuss issues as they arise 
in this matter; (2) attend and participate in meetings, preparation sessions, court proceedings and 
other activities in connection with the representation; (3) timely provide complete and accurate 
information and documents to us; (4) make timely payment to any experts or vendors retained in 
connection with our services; and (5) advise whether there is an agreement to arbitrate the subject 
claim(s), either in a stand-alone arbitration agreement, an employee handbook, an employment 
application or otherwise. 

E. Protection of Client Confidences – Electronic Communication Devices 

We are always mindful of our central obligation to preserve the secrets and 
confidences of our clients.  To that end, we must agree from the outset what kinds of 
communications technology we will employ during this engagement.  Unless the Organization 
specifically directs us to the contrary, for this engagement, we agree that it is appropriate for us to 
use fax machines and email during the engagement with no encryption or other special protections.  
In that regard, if there is a specific email address which you would like us to use to communicate 
with you, other than your current Organization email address, please let us know.  Please also 
notify the Firm if the Organization has any other requests or requirements in connection with the 

21



Bernadette Suarez 
December 1, 2025 

Page 3 
 

methods of telecommunication, or persons to be included in the circulation of documents relating 
to the engagement.  

The Firm is committed to protecting the confidential and personal information 
entrusted to it and taking reasonable steps as required by law with respect to its service providers 
and contractors regarding compliance with applicable data privacy and security laws.  By agreeing 
to the engagement outlined in this letter, the Organization consents and agrees, as applicable, to 
the terms and conditions of the Firm’s online privacy policy and terms of use 
(https://www.jacksonlewis.com/disclaimer-privacy-and-copyright) as well as the applicable data 
privacy and security addenda (https://www.jacksonlewis.com/data-privacy-and-security-
addenda), which are incorporated herein by reference. 

F. Termination of Representation 

The Organization may terminate this representation at any time, with or without 
cause.  We also reserve the right to withdraw at any time to the fullest extent permitted by the 
applicable ethical rules.  Any termination of our representation of the Organization would be 
subject to such approval as may be required from any court(s) in which we are appearing on the 
Organization’s behalf.  In the event of termination by either of us, fees and costs for work 
performed before termination will still be payable as provided for in this letter.  

Following any termination of representation, client files will be released only 
following delivery to the Firm of a signed release letter containing appropriate directions and an 
acknowledgment of the obligation to pay outstanding fees.  The Organization will be charged for 
the reasonable costs of retrieval, assembly, copying, processing and transfer of all files or 
materials, including Electronically Stored Information (ESI). 

Upon termination of representation, the Firm reserves the right to maintain the 
Organization’s legal file in electronic format only.  Client files, whether in physical or electronic 
format, will be kept for 10 years following the close of the matter, absent a written agreement 
between the Firm and the Organization to maintain the file for a different length of time.  After 
this period has elapsed, the file will be destroyed without further notification to the Organization 
unless applicable law or court order requires otherwise.  If the Organization would like the Firm 
to return its file at any time during the 10 year retention period, please send a written request to 
JLRecords&InformationGovernance@jacksonlewis.com.   

G. Preservation of Documentation 

If notice of a claim is received by the Organization, the Organization must take 
immediate steps to identify, preserve and collect all relevant information until the matter is 
completely resolved.  This information includes all paper and all Electronically Stored Information 
(ESI) related to the claim.  ESI includes, but is not limited to, emails and attachments, instant 
messages, text messages, social media postings and messages, messaging accounts or services, 
Workplace Collaboration Tools (including Slack, Asana, Microsoft Teams, Salesforce Chatter, 
Workplace Facebook, WebEx, GoToMeeting, Google Docs), voicemails, photos, videos, word 
processing documents, calendars, spreadsheets, PowerPoints, databases, contact manager 

22

https://www.jacksonlewis.com/disclaimer-privacy-and-copyright
https://www.jacksonlewis.com/data-privacy-and-security-addenda
https://www.jacksonlewis.com/data-privacy-and-security-addenda
mailto:JLRecords&InformationGovernance@jacksonlewis.com


Bernadette Suarez 
December 1, 2025 

Page 4 
 

information and Internet usage files.  In addition, the ESI stored in the Organization’s employees’ 
Organization-issued and owned devices, including phones, tablets, and desktop computers, is 
likely considered within the Organization’s “control” and may also contain important evidence 
relevant to the claims in this dispute.  Additionally, depending on the Organization’s written 
policies and employment agreements, ESI stored in the Organization’s employees’ personal 
devices may be considered within the Organization’s “control.”  

The Organization must also immediately suspend any document 
retention/destruction policy and put in place a Litigation Hold.  This Litigation Hold is designed 
to ensure that relevant electronic evidence is preserved and not destroyed, altered, modified, 
disposed of, or in any way compromised.  Thus, any individuals who may have relevant 
information or documents related to a matter must comply with this Litigation Hold. 

Although this may seem like an onerous task, document retention is critical for the 
defense of a matter and to ensure the Organization complies with its legal obligation to preserve 
and produce relevant information.  A failure to preserve documents or electronic data could have 
dire consequences in a matter.  For example, on top of monetary sanctions, the Organization may 
be precluded from using certain evidence at trial or the court may allow a jury to draw negative 
inferences against the Organization.  Under a worst-case scenario, the court may award a judgment 
in favor of the claimant.  Therefore, if the Organization has any doubt about whether paper or 
electronic data falls within the scope of a Litigation Hold, it should err on the side of preservation 
and contact us. 

H. Advance Conflict of Interest Waiver 

Because of the size, geographical reach and the broad scope of the Firm’s legal 
practice, it is possible that attorneys in one or more of the Firm’s offices or departments may now 
or in the future represent parties in matters in which their interests are adverse to those of the 
Organization or its affiliates, or have contractual or other dealings with the Organization.  As a 
condition of our representation, the Organization agrees that the Firm may represent other parties 
in matters in which their interests are adverse to those of the Organization or its affiliates and 
waives any conflict that would otherwise exist in such matters, provided that (i) any matter in 
which the Firm represents an adverse party is not substantially related to the Firm’s work for the 
Organization, and (ii) if appropriate, an ethical wall is created to separate the other matter from the 
matters the Firm is handling for the Organization. 

I. Potential Conflicts with Third Party Service Providers  

The Firm represents many clients, including various third-party payroll and/or 
benefits service providers, in matters unrelated to this matter.  Because of the Firm’s relationship 
with these service providers, it would be prohibited by the Rules of Professional Conduct from 
advising the Organization regarding any indemnification claims it may have against any service 
provider who is also a Firm client.  Additionally, if the Organization desired to pursue the service 
provider for indemnification, such desire could create a conflict in the Firm’s continued 
representation of the Organization in connection with this matter.  If at any time the Organization 
decides that it intends to explore the possibility of pursuing a service provider for indemnification, 

23



Bernadette Suarez 
December 1, 2025 

Page 5 
 

we ask that the Organization kindly alert the Firm so that we can take steps to determine if a 
conflict exists regarding our underlying defense of the Organization in this matter.  

J.  Potential Insurance Coverage 

Whenever a potential claim is raised, the Organization should review this matter 
with its internal counsel, insurance broker or anyone else with whom it wishes to discuss the 
possibility of other insurance being applicable, e.g., employment practices liability insurance, 
directors and officers or other insurance policies or programs such as an excess liability insurance 
policy, homeowners or personal insurance or any other form or kind of insurance including 
workers’ compensation insurance.  As employment defense counsel, the Firm cannot provide an 
opinion about the obligation, extent, or terms of the Organization’s coverage.  As with any 
insurance policy, prompt and complete notice should be given, as required by the policy and by 
applicable law.  Failure to do so could adversely affect the existence of or eligibility for any 
insurance coverage. 

K.  Dispute Resolution 

Organization and Jackson Lewis P.C. agree that any dispute between us arising out 
of, or relating to, this agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be resolved by binding arbitration 
between the parties.  This includes, but is not limited to any claims regarding attorney’s fees or 
costs under this agreement or regarding a claim of attorney malpractice, that is, whether any legal 
services Jackson Lewis P.C. has rendered, under this agreement or otherwise, were improperly, 
negligently, or incompetently rendered, or otherwise rendered in breach of a contractual or ethical 
duty. 

This agreement to arbitrate shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act 
(“FAA”).  The procedures of the California Arbitration Act shall apply to the extent they are not 
preempted by the FAA and consistent with the procedures set forth in this agreement.  Arbitration 
shall be in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration 
Association (“AAA Rules”).  The AAA Rules can be found at the AAA’s website 
(https://www.adr.org/sites/default/files/CommercialRules_Web.pdf). 

Please note there are certain advantages and disadvantages when submitting a 
dispute to an arbitral forum as compared to a judicial forum.  In arbitration, the dispute will be 
submitted to a single arbitrator or a panel of arbitrators presiding over the issues.  For purposes of 
this agreement, a single arbitrator will preside over any arbitration brought pursuant to this 
provision.  In a judicial forum, the Organization would be entitled to a trial before a jury in a 
courtroom open to the public.  The outcome of the arbitration generally will not be appealable and 
will remain confidential.  In comparison, the non-prevailing party in a judicial proceeding has a 
right to appeal to challenge errors in the trial court and any award or verdict is a matter of public 
record.  If a settlement results from a matter filed in a judicial forum, a confidentiality provision 
would be a negotiated term of the settlement.  In terms of potential costs, the cost of the arbitration, 
including payment to the arbitrator, shall be shared by the parties, but the arbitrator shall have the 
right to allocate costs in the final award.  With a judicial proceeding, each party bears their 
respective filing fees and neither pays for the services of the judge.  It is also important to note the 

24

https://www.adr.org/sites/default/files/CommercialRules_Web.pdf


Bernadette Suarez 
December 1, 2025 

Page 6 
 

scope of discovery available in arbitration may be more limited that a judicial forum, which 
generally has broad discovery.  

The Organization should review the differences between a dispute in an arbitral and 
judicial forum and should carefully consider whether arbitration is acceptable to it.  If the 
Organization so desires, it should consult with independent counsel regarding this issue. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing above, in any dispute subject to the jurisdiction of 
the State of California over attorneys’ fees, charges, costs or expenses, the Organization has the 
right to elect arbitration under the fee arbitration procedures of the State Bar of California, as set 
forth in California Business & Professions Code sections 6200, et seq.  Those procedures permit a 
trial after fee arbitration, unless the parties agree in writing, after the dispute has arisen, to be bound 
by the fee arbitration award.  If, after receiving a notice of the Organization’s right to arbitrate, the 
Organization does not elect to proceed under the State Bar fee arbitration procedures and file a 
request for fee arbitration within 30 days, any dispute over fees, charges, costs, or expenses will 
be resolved by binding arbitration as provided in this section.  In addition, any trial after fee 
arbitration shall be pursued in arbitration under subparagraph 1 as set forth above. 

L. Miscellaneous Provisions 

This agreement can be amended or modified only by a writing signed by you and 
the Firm.  

This agreement shall be binding upon the Organization and the Firm, and our 
respective heirs, executors, legal representatives, successors, and assigns.  

Nothing in this agreement is intended or shall be construed as impermissibly 
waiving or limiting the Firm’s or its attorneys’ professional obligations to the Organization or to 
the profession under the Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct adopted by the State Bar of 
California or other law.  

Because of our ethical obligations to our clients, it would not be appropriate for the 
Firm to advise the Organization on whether to agree to the terms of this agreement.  The 
Organization should make that decision independently.  If the Organization has legal questions 
about this agreement or the role of Jackson Lewis in representing the Organization, the 
Organization may review those questions with another attorney.  The Organization’s acceptance 
of the terms of this agreement will confirm that the Organization has made that decision 
independently and that the Organization understands its option to review its terms with other 
counsel of the Organization’s choosing. 

* * * *  

25



Bernadette Suarez 
December 1, 2025 

Page 7 
 

If the above and the attachment is acceptable to the Organization, please sign 
below and return a copy of this letter to me. 

If you have any questions at any time about the scope of our representation, the 
handling of any matter or the content of any invoice, please contact me at 619-573-4905 or 
shauna.amon@jacksonlewis.com.  We are pleased to be of service to the Organization. 

 
Enclosure 
 
 

 
Agreed to and accepted by: 
 
JACKSON LEWIS P.C.  SOUTH BAY CITIES COUNCIL OF 

GOVERNMENTS  
   
   
__________________________________  _________________________________ 
By:  Shauna R. Amon  By:  Bernadette Suarez  
Title: Principal  Title:  SBCCOG Chaier  
   

 
 
Date:   
 
______________________________ 

 

26



 

A WORD ABOUT OUR INVOICES ... 

Invoices are sent to our clients monthly or pursuant to an insurance carrier’s guidelines if 
applicable. The preferred method of delivery for our invoices is email. Billings for services 
rendered on your matter(s) and for reasonable expenses incurred on your behalf are sent about 
three to four weeks after the end of the month in which the work is performed. 

As detailed in the engagement letter, for any threatened or actual claim, please verify 
whether there is insurance of any kind that may cover the actual or potential claim and if there is, 
please provide prompt and complete notice to us and to the insurance carrier. 

Subject to applicable guidelines, we charge for all services rendered on your matter(s) 
including, but not limited to, telephone calls, conferences, court and agency hearings, and other 
proceedings. These include reimbursement for travel-related expenses, such as lodging, meals, air 
travel, ground travel, auto expenses, parking fees, tolls and mileage. We also bill for all 
photocopying costs, telephone calls, facsimiles, postage, messenger service and, if required, 
delivery charges where material is sent via certified or registered mail or by express mail or package 
carrier. If a situation arises which requires overtime work by our secretaries, we will invoice you at 
our cost. All third party charges (e.g., filing, trial, and court reporter fees) are the responsibility of 
the client and should be paid directly by the client. The cost for computerized legal research is the 
rate calculated by our vendor LexisNexis. Your cost is not based on the annual discount 
arrangement the Firm has with LexisNexis. Payment for our services and expenses described are 
expected upon receipt of our invoice. We are confident our clients make every effort to pay us 
promptly. 

We do our utmost to provide quality and professional service to our clients. In return, we 
expect timely payment for services rendered. A monthly service charge of one and a half percent 
(1.5%) is added to the unpaid balance of any invoice not paid within 90 days after it is rendered. 

Electronic discovery related charges will be billed directly by the vendor who provides these 
services. These nonlegal services and expert witness charges are provided under separate agreement 
between you and the vendor or expert. The non-legal services that might be necessary for electronic 
discovery include: forensic collection of electronically stored information (“ESI”) from your computer 
systems, computer forensic and other technical consulting, ESI processing, ESI uploading and 
search/review software hosting, ESI production, training, and project management services. You are 
responsible for making timely payment of their invoices to avoid any disruption in our legal services. 
Charges by Kroll or other e-services providers will be invoiced on our invoices or separately. 

If your payment is submitted without remittance information (invoice number), the Firm 
will generally apply the payment to the oldest outstanding invoices first. The Firm will provide 
detail of how the payment was applied upon request. 

The above terms will apply to each invoice unless the Firm and the client have agreed, in 
writing, to a modification of the billing arrangements. 

Check payments should be forwarded to our lockbox. Please note the mailing address 
varies depending upon the method of delivery: 

27



 

 
FEDERAL EXPRESS/UPS  USPS MAIL 
Bank of America Lockbox Services  Jackson Lewis P.C. 
BOX 416019 Jackson Lewis P.C.  P.O. Box 416019 
MA5-527-02-07  Boston, MA 02241-6019 
2 Morrissey Blvd. 

 

Dorchester, MA 02125 
 

 

We also accept electronic payment of our invoices. If you choose to pay your invoice by 
electronic transfer, please include the invoice number in the transfer information and send payment 
to: 

 

Bank Bank of America N.A.  
  One Bryant Park, 32nd Floor  

  New York, NY 10036 

    
    
Routing Number WIRES 026009593 
Routing Number ACH/EFT 021200339 
    
For credit to  Jackson Lewis P.C.  
Account  381032861703 
    
SWIFT Code International Wires in USD  BOFAUS3N  

SWIFT Code International Wires in FX  BOFAUS6S  
 
Please send the confirmation notice detailing client number and invoice number to: 
epayments@jacksonlewis.com 

 
Our foreign-based clients must ensure payment is made via international money order 

payable in U.S. dollars. If payment is by regular check drawn on a foreign bank, we will add $30 
to our bill for banking charges. If you have any questions about our billing procedures or any time 
or disbursement charges, please speak to the attorney responsible for your matter. 

28

mailto:epayments@jacksonlewis.com


   
 

   
 

South Bay Cities Council of Governments   
           
December 8, 2025 
 

 
To:   SBCCOG Steering Committee 
     
From:  Jacki Bacharach, Executive Director 
  David Leger, Program Manager 
 
Re:  Authorization for Issuance of a Cashier’s Check for Dominguez Channel Services 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Dominguez Channel Watershed Management Group (DCWMG) has utilized the SBCCOG 
for administration related services for many years.  This frequently involves invoicing, 
contracting, and other administrative services.   
 
As part of a pollution-related settlement with the Regional Water Quality Control Board, several 
DCWMG members are required to pay a fee.  As administrator, the SBCCOG is being asked to 
issue a cashier’s check for the settlement amount of $109,316.53 on behalf of the DCWMG.  A 
regular check is not accepted by the Regional Water Quality Control Board.   
 
DCWMG members subject to this settlement agreement have elected to utilize funds retained by 
the SBCCOG in a DCWMG reserve fund.  The only funding that would be required to be 
collected by the SBCCOG is from the City of Lomita as the source of their reserve funds held by 
the SBCCOG is not allowed to be used towards a settlement payment.  The City of Lomita has 
been invoiced and payment was received.  All others have sufficient reserve funds to cover their 
portion of the settlement.   
 
This payment is completely covered by DCWMG settlement funds and does not involve any of 
SBCCOG’s funds. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the issuance of a cashier’s check for payment of settlement agreements owed to the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board by Dominguez Channel Watershed Management Group 
members.    
 
                    

29



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

30



November 2025

Monthy  Meetings
City Managers 

Meeting 
City Clerks Working 

Group
Infrastructure 

Working Group
Steering Committee

Transit Operators 
Working Group

Transportation 
Committee

Carson

El Segundo D. George C. Ebert C. Pimentel
C. Pimentel
E. Sassoon

Gardena B. Romero

Hawthorne V. Norris
D. Williams-Hunter

D. Cucalon
J. Post

D. Torado D. Torado

Hermosa Beach S. Napolitano R. Jackson R. Jackson

Inglewood H. Singh T. Olmos
J. Butts

T. Olmos
Lawndale Y. Palomo B. Suarez L. Rodriguez
Lomita K. Gregory B. Uphoff B. Uphoff
Manhattan Beach T. Mirzakhanian E. Zandvliet N. Tarnay
Palos Verdes Estates K. Kallman O. Antillon Q. Quinn

Rancho Palos Verdes A. Mihranian
Redondo Beach M. Witzansky Z. Obagi B. Magumcia Z. Obagi
Rolling Hills K. Banales C. Horvath
Rolling Hills Estates G. Grammer B. Huff

Torrance D. Santana R. Poirier
H. Shi
C. Cho

D. Mach
J. Soliz

County of LA
E. Garcia

M. Amundson
A. Ly

A. Yoon (SD 2)
B. Fish (SD 4)

E. Garcia (DPW)
Los Angeles

City Attendance at Meetings

Attendees

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

32



Client Aid Recap

Date 
Submitted Why this aid is needed and why other options will not work The Client Aid request best fits the 

following option
Amount 

Requested Client City in 
SPA 8

Agency/
City Outcomes Category

10/1/25

Client and her 7-year-old daughter were outreached at Marine Park, in 
Manhattan Beach where the case manager discovered that they had been 
homeless and sleeping in the vehicle and sometimes motels in various 
locations since last May. Client and her S/O both work but have been unable 
to secure an apartment. Prior to becoming homeless, the clients were living 
with her mother but her relationship became toxic and was forced to leave.  
Clients have been moving from city to city and placed on multiple waiting 
lists, however no shelters became available.   Client’s daughter is enrolled in 
school in Gardena, where they last lived.  Clients have secured an apartment 
in Gardena and require assistance with both the Security Deposit (less the 
100.00 holding fee) and 1st month’s rent.  Clients total income along with her 
S/O is approx 4k a month. Property management is requesting payment no 
later than 10/15/2025 but have allowed this family to move in on 10/1/2025.

Security/1st month's rent $3,532.00 Natalie Manhattan 
Beach

Harbor interfaith 
services , Manhattan 

Beach  
Housed

10/7/25

Client is 25 years old and had been homeless in Redondo for approximately 2 
months. He asked the local librarian to contact the case manager and 
requested her assistance to return to his home in LaCrosse, Wisconsin to live 
with his aunt.  Case manager purchased a one-way bus ticket for him and he 
was able to leave the same day.

Moving Assistance $356.70 CODY Redondo Beach CITY OF REDONDO 
BEACH Housed Financial Assistance

10/8/25

Client was referred for assistance by Torrance Unified School District staff. 
Client has a thirteen-year-old son.  Client works two jobs and receives no child 
support. Client has lived at her current apartment for the past 2 years and fell 
behind on rent recently when her hours at one position were cut back. Client 
is continue to work with case manager and will be enrolled into the Time 
Limited Subsidy program to receive subsidized assistance for approximately 
3 months.

Rental/Utility Deposits $3,350.00 Lakesha Torrance City of Torrance Housed

10/10/25

Reimbursement is for a 3 night motel stay prior to transfer to shelter program 
for housing navigation and services.  Client is 66 years old with medical 
concerns and was considered to be a high risk client and outreach needed 
time to matched to shelter.

1-5 day motel stay due to an immediate 
acute health, safety, weather related 
problem, or an after hours/weekend 
request prior to social worker 
engagement (approx. $100/night)

$300.00 Jacqueline Inglewood St. Margaret's Center Sheltered

10/10/25
Request is for a one night motel stay prior to intake and placement at a 
shelter. One night motel $109.89 Anthony Torrance City of Torrance Sheltered

10/13/25

Client was initially staying in a shelter where she was promised housing, but 
when there was no movement, moved in with her sister. This proved to be an 
unstable environment, and the client resorted to sleeping in her car. Case 
Manager began working with her and, over the past few weeks, has been able 
to locate a suitable apartment. She is working p/t and additionally receives 
SSI. She was recently approved for an apartment. Client requires assistance 
with the security deposit to move in.

Rental/Utility Deposits $1,600.00 Lydia Carson WLCAC Housed

10/13/25

Client is 29 years old and arrived in Los Angeles in August 2025, but plans did 
not go how he intended, and he found himself without a job or place to stay. 
He requested assistance to return to his home in Iowa, where he will be living 
with an aunt. Request is for a one -way plane ticket.

Re-unification (plane ticket) $377.28 Jaquan Inglewood St. Margaret's Center Reunification - 
Housed - IOWA

10/17/25

Client has experienced chronic homelessness since 2017. He is currently 
staying at the BHCH shelter and has been in the Hawthorne area since 2019-
2020. Since at the Shelter, he has been able to turn his life around. He has 
found a job and maintain his employment. He also remains consistent with 
AA, counseling and therapy sessions. Request is for Security and First 
months rent in the amount of $1040.00.

Security Deposit and 1st month rent $1,040.00 Cheston Hawthorne Hawthorne Access 
Center Housed

10/17/25

Request is for a Security Deposit of $2400.00. Client is the mother of two 
daughters, ages 16 and 6.  In fall of 2023, the court granted the client a 
restraining order against her ex-boyfriend, who had abused both her and her 
older daughter.  This past summer he began threatening her again. This time 
she left her apartment and requested that LACDA approve for an emergency 
relocation under the VAWA act. The City of Inglewood now holds the voucher.  
Client currently remains sober and receives ongoing services from a sex-
trafficking victims’ organization.

Rental/Utility Deposits $2,400.00 Lucia Inglewood St. Margaret's Center Prevention - 
remain housed

10/17/25

This request is for an apartment application fee for a mother and adult 
daughter. They are currently homeless in Inglewood. They initially had a 
HACLA voucher, but were forced out of housing when the former owner sold 
the unit. Clients ported their voucher to Inglewood under the presumption that 
they had located a new unit, which turned out to be a scam. Case 
management is attempting to assist this family with services and the 
housing search.

Application Fees/DMV Fees/Document 
Assistance $47.00 Gine Inglewood St. Margaret's Center TBD - ongoing 

housing search

10/20/25
Client is requesting assistance with a one-time security deposit to relocate to 
a safer area. Client encountered issues at previous housing location that put 
her and her two young children at risk. Client felt unsafe and vulnerable.

Rental/Utility Deposits $2,887.00 Laura San Pedro San Pedro Recovery 
Alliance

Prevention - 
remain housed

10/20/25

Client is a 22 year-old male who unfortunately has been "in and out" of the 
foster care system/ DCFS since he was a 1-year-old.  Client became 
homeless when he aged out of the system at 18 years of age and has been 
couch surfing with friends and family for the past 4 years.   Client is currently 
employed and earns approx. $2400/month.      Client had originally applied to 
Inglewood’s Sec 8 program in 2016, and this year was granted a voucher. He 
has located and been approved for a unit in Inglewood and is requesting 
assistance with the Security Deposit.

security deposit $2,172.00 Antonio Lennox St. Margaret's Center Housed  

10/22/25
Request is for reimbursement to city of Torrance who provided this client 
with a bus ticket to return to his home in Wyoming for reunification with 
family.

Bus ticket back home with family. $249.97 Gerome Torrance City of Torrance
Housed - 
Reunification - 
Wyoming

10/27/25

Torrance case manager provided working on a Saturday, met with this client 
to assess his needs. This client is 38 years old,  is not working had no income 
and is living in his vehicle in Torrance near the Del-Amo mall. T he case 
manager assisted him by driving him and purchasing a  $40.00 visa card to 
allow for  him to do the laundry he had amassed.  Case manager was unable 
to provide transportation when the client was done as it was late in the day. A 
lyft ride back to his vehicle was also provided at a cost of $27.59.

Laundry and transportation $67.59 Branden Torrance City of Torrance

TBD - ongoing 
case manager 
working on 
building trust 
and connecting 
this client to 
additional 
services 
(eyeglass 
appointment 
and DPSS office) 

10/27/25

Pamela Pusich female age 56 with disabling conditions, predominantly 
mental health issues. She became homeless in 09/2023 after having a 
significant unresolved dispute with other tenants living at the mobile home 
park where she had been living for more than a year. She indicated she had 
left voluntarily and has no eviction record. Since becoming homeless,  she 
has been in/out shelters, common discharge reasons: having conflict with 
other tenants or MIA. She is able to complete ADLs and live independently 
with minimal assistance. She has a small rescue dog. She located the Home 
At Last property herself and requested assistance from the case manager to 
assist with move in costs .

Moving Assistance $1,760.00 Pamela Hawthorne St. Margaret's Center Housed

33



Client Aid Recap

Date 
Submitted Why this aid is needed and why other options will not work The Client Aid request best fits the 

following option
Amount 

Requested Client City in 
SPA 8

Agency/
City Outcomes Category

10/27/25

Community member was referred to case management team via local 
resident. Team responded to reported location of Wilderness Park where 
community member was living in their car. Community member identifies as 
within LGBTQUIA+ community, provided demographic details to team, housing 
referral was completed, match was made, and match fell through due to 
errors on CBO's behalf. Due to community member's mental health, sexual 
identity, trauma was prior congregate setting, in order to contain and keep 
them safe, a motel stay was deemed appropriate through the weekend in 
order for case management team to continue collaboration with DMH for 
referral/placement into another CBO's interim housing program that will best 
meet the needs of the community member based on historical and 
demographic details case management team collected. Update we were able 
to get him into SHARE RESPITE and then he will transition to SHARE 
Collaborative under SBCCOG. I will than take him on my caseload to secure 
employment.

1-5 day motel stay due to an immediate 
acute health, safety, weather related 
problem, or an after hours/weekend 
request prior to social worker 
engagement (approx. $100/night)

$598.00 Sergey Redondo HERO Community 
Services

Housed - He 
obtained interim 
housing that will 
transition to 
permanent 
housing via 
SHARE

10/28/25

Client is an 18 year old who was homeless in Torrance. A motel pending 
SHARE placement, plus shoes were needed, and Lyft ride for him to get to the 
hotel after a late work shift, picking up his belongings late and no outreach 
team available at that time to transport him.

motel stay, transportation, and shoes $312.51 Ephraim Torrance City of Torrance Housed 

10/28/25
Client was outreached on Torrance Blvd and stated to case manager that he 
wished to return home to Oregon, This reimbursement isfor the greyhound 
bus ticket to allow him to return to family.

Bus ticket back home with family. $382.20 Kenneth Torrance City of Torrance
Housed - 
Reunification - 
Oregon

10/30/25

To not lose client as she had intake appt in interim housing program next day. 
Reimbure to City of Torrance for client who was placed into interim housing 
program next day.  Client will have housing services and case management 
provided. 

One night motel stay prior to a court date, 
job interview, housing appointment, or 
other exit event (approx. $100/night)

$109.89 Samira Torrance City of Torrance Shelter

10/30/25
Reimbursement to City of Torrance for one night motel stay. Client was 
placed into Shared housing in Carson the following day.

One night motel stay prior to a court date, 
job interview, housing appointment, or 
other exit event (approx. $100/night)

$109.89 Michael Torrance City of Torrance Housed

10/31/25

Client was recently matched to Project Based Housing at the West Haven 
Apartments! Client is a 51-year-old man who was living behind an industrial 
trash bin.  As of June 20205, client received a match through the CES/ HMIS 
system and was scheduled to move in 10/28. Request is for reimbursement 
of his Security Deposit to SMC.

Security Deposit $500.00 Ryan Inglewood St. Margaret's Center Housed

11/3/25

Request is for reimbursement to Family Promise for the purchase of a stove 
and refrigerator for a recently homeless family of 4 (Dad, Mom and 2 young 
girls).   who are now housed. While homeless the family lived in a rented U-
Haul truck until Family Promise was able to locate a temporary shelter.  They 
have now moved into permanent housing were a stove and refrigerator were 
not provided by the landlord. The current family income is approximately 
$2300/month. They are not receiving any add’l subsidy supports from outside 
agencies toward their rent.

Furnishing: Refrigerator and Stove $1,546.70 Carolina San Pedro Family Promise of 
Los Angeles

Family provided 
stove and 
refrigerator and 
now 
permanently 
housed

11/3/25

Client is a 69 year old male who has been experiencing homelessness since 
2018. Client is disabled and is wheelchair bound. He was outreached by 
Hawthorne PD and the Hawthorne Outreach team who placed him at the 
BCHD Pallet Shelter. Client does receive income of $1200/month and will be 
able to afford his monthly rent of $468.00.  Client has been approved for a unit 
and requires assistance with his Security Deposit and First month’s rent.  
This will allow him to purchase some necessary items for his new unit.

Security Deposit and 1st month rent $918.00 Shaun Hawthorne Hawthorne Access 
Center Housed 

Client Aid Since 8/15 $71,771 
New Contract Measure A Budget $258,204 

Remaining $186,433 

Total Client Aid Cases 402
Total Housed or Relocated 285

Total Sheltered 58
Total Job Attainment 9

Total Successful Outcomes 352
Success Rate 88%

Average $/Case $1,295 

34



City Participant 
Initials Background Months to Date Projected 12-Mo Cost

Carson AR

Monique has been slowly engaging with him since October, and has seen an incredible amount of 
progress. He started of with just GR but since then has received a full time job and has been working 
consistently for the past 2 months passing out hot meals/with a senior home. Makes $3500-3700 
per month. 62 years old, from Carson, wants to also pursue schooling for being a SUD peer 
counselor (6-7mo program), and the program will help him find employment. Angelo found this 
unit on his own on 10th street, landlord said he’s all approved. Rent around $1775 and could 
move in Aug 1. He has a minor knee surgery planned mid August, so he will not be able to work 
during that period, so we will also cover month 2 at 100%.

3 $7,100

Carson TW

22yo, F, no kids (Carson) 
Has been at her job for almost a year, approved for a unit. Income is about $2700-2800/mo (works 
for Homeboy Industries. They will give her more income)
•Part time, not getting the cash benefits but still getting food stamps and GR. Will probably change 
with the increase in hours and also property management work
Property manager also offered her a position to be the property manager for her building. Rent is 
$1850 unit. Can move in this week/next week –see agreement on file 
Vehicle based originally, eventually it got repossessed because she didn’t have a license/insurance 
(about 2-3 mo ago)

3 $2,789

Hermosa Beach AH In film industry but has been unsuccessful in landing another job 2 $9,000

LA City AM

25 years old, no children – been working with case mgr 6 or 7 months 
Has been staying in vehicle at 132nd and Figueroa – 
Since working with Monique she has increased her income from GR to employment (2 ½ months) 
Income now: 3500/mo approved for a unit rent will be $1775/ 

3 $7,100

LA City EW

Participant originally relocated from Las Vegas with the intention of living with family, but after that 
arrangement fell through, he was left without stable housing. As a result, he began drinking and 
ultimately ended up living in an encampment. Since then, he has shown significant progress. He is 
now sober, sleeping in a friend’s car, and recently started working. His motivation to rebuild his life, 
secure permanent housing, and maintain employment makes him a strong candidate for the 
SBCCOG TLS Program, which can provide the structured support he needs to continue moving 
forward

4 $6,072

LA City GK

Client is currently living in her car with her children and has shown strong motivation to improve her 
situation. After learning that employment was required for TLS eligibility, she quickly secured a job 
in home care while continuing to receive CalWORKs benefits. She is responsible, actively working, 
and committed to getting her family out of homelessness. Her determination and follow-through 
make her a strong fit for the support and structure offered by the TLS program.

4 $7,797

LA City HB

Client has been incredibly patient and cooperative since meeting client in the Month of April 2025 . 
He has been working and continue to keep his head held high during tough times . The client has 
full-time income and wants more in life . The client also stated that everything he do is for his 12 
year old daughter who stays with mom , However he is very active in her life and would like to have a 
place of his own to spend time with his daughter . 

4 $6,120

LA City JG Lost job last year. Mother of 4. Is working now. Looking to increase child support. 2 $9,733.0

LA City JL

JL and her son have been working with our program since January 2025 but we have so far been 
unsuccessful in getting them housed. JL is employed, makes enough to cover the rent for an 
apartment they were approved for, but could use some initial support as they furnish the 
apartment, etc.

4 $8,349

LA City JR
Referred to Miranda by Harbor Connects. Connected with Antonio in 10/2024. Has a service 
dog/cat. Receives SSDI and does uber deliveries to increase his income. This is his very first 
apartment!

3 $5,400

LA City JW

First engaged with the client in November. Living in an encampment and working with his cousin on 
a food truck to earn money to support his daughters. His mother, who could no longer drive, gave 
him her car, and he began sleeping in it. He was later approved for housing through our regular TLS 
program, but the unit was in SPA 8, which was experiencing staffing shortages. He waited nearly five 
months before the program was paused. During that time, we supported him with job applications, 
and he eventually secured a position with the post office. Although the client is still facing 
significant financial challenges (i.e., school debt and other bills), he has remained consistently 
compliant and deeply grateful throughout the process. He recently moved into his new apartment 
and was overcome with emotion. He’s still processing the reality of being housed and is incredibly 
thankful.

3 $7,580

LA City TL

44yo, WLCAC been working with since October, currently in her car (for 1.5 years). She tried to stay 
with family member but that didn't work out. Was in a bad relationship, no parents. Lots of 
unforeseen circumstances that resulted in homelessness. Initial plan: 100% July prorate, August-
Oct 100%, Nov: client takes over rent. Monthly income is $3500, will need to furnish apt, car 
insurance, and has some student loan debt

4 $8,235

La City TB

She has a part time job, been approved for her unit $1850 (SoLa Rentals) 
Makes close to $3000. When first met her, only getting CalWorks and working under the table. 6mo 
got hired (office work; some sort of office assistant). With the new job, cut off from CalWorks but 
still receives food stamps. 

3 $7,072

TLS Recap Report

35



City Participant 
Initials Background Months to Date Projected 12-Mo Cost

LA City TR

Working with SoLA rentals, have one bedrooms for $1850, just have to set up the unit viewing. 
Studios are $1650 (a bit more room for savings)
•Age: 25yo, single
•Working: income since Monique has worked with her back in March. Works at the post office, part-
time. Willing to take on more hours, has been there almost a year. They can give her full time. 
$2300-2400 per month
•Has been staying in her vehicle. Also was in TX a year or two ago, lost her mom’s property. Her and 
her mom went their separate ways. When she first came out here, she was staying with some friends 
for a little while. Eventually got her own car and has been staying there
•Low acuity, doesn’t seem to have any substance use
•Has about $800 saved

3 $7,030

LA City JS

Exiting a DV situation – does have a restraining order 
Sleeping in her car in the Harbor Gateway Area prior was staying with her sister and her boyfriend but 
felt uncomfortable with boyfriend
Has a 4 year old child
Inome: Employment and Partial Calworks $3493/month
Recently viewed an apartment but was not comfortable with the location

6 $13,413

LA City VP The client receives $1200.00 monthly for SSI . This would allow the client to furnish his unit as well 
. 

3 $2,476

Lennox CM Client housing unstable after family sold house.  Relocating to Antelope Valley.  Needs help with 
relocation. 3 $4,125

Palos Verde RW Senior who needs housing stability until another senior subsidy comes along 2 $14,500
Torrance AH Previous 3290 resident, aged out of Foster 5 $16,187
Torrance DM Client works, fell behind with expenses - car payments 2 $6,800
Torrance IC Family of 4 (Mom + 3 kids). Previous apartment fire, lost home. Kids at TUSD. TLS is helping her get 6 $21,987
Torrance JL In film industry but has been unsuccessful in landing another jobMother with 5 year old child 2 $8,005

Torrance LF

Aid is for a family of 4 – Father, Mother, 2year old and newborn 
Dad works full time and brings home approximately 2k month
Mom was working as a medical assistant, however with new child has not worked in several months
Dad plans to find add’l income 
Add’l plan of Mom to return to work and have family assist with child care

6 $10,688

Torrance LW

I wanted to submit a referral who was referred to us by Torrance Unified School District staff. Mother 
has a thirteen-year-old son she lives with here in Torrance and she receives no child support. Works 
two jobs, but due to her limited income and some personal hardship, she fell behind on rent 
recently and received a 3-day notice. Thankfully, the property owner has showed some patience 
and willingness to work with her as she tries to catch up and pay off the money she owes, but time 
is ticking. 

I strongly believe that by helping her pay for the $1650.00 she owes and providing a minimum of 3 
months of rent support, Mother will be able to be in a better position to self-sustain and not get 
stuck in a pay-back cycle as she is working on obtaining more hours at one of her jobs and/or 
increasing her income. 

1 $6,750

Torrance MK Short term intervention; Lyft driver previously staying at motel 2 $5,653

Torrance SS

Receptive to services and works a full-time job as well as a side job. They want the best for their 
children (in TUSD) and have been working to pay their credit debt while they've been in a motel. The 
participant needs some help with rent as they transition back to permanent housing and address 
financial challenges. 

7 $22,462

$232,422
$500,000

Notes
LA City includes the Wilmington, Harbor Gateway, San Pedro areas in the South Bay (i.e., CD15)

Total TLS Budget
Total Projected 12-Mo Cost

36



1 
 

South Bay Cities Council of Governments 
 

December 8, 2025 

TO:   SBCCOG Steering Committee 

 

FROM:  Jacki Bacharach, SBCCOG Executive Director 

  Addy Ajijolaiya, SBCCOG Program Manager for Homeless Services  

 

SUBJECT:  Budget Modification of Measure H Local Solutions Fund (LSF)  

 

BACKGROUND:  

In March 2017, LA County voters approved Measure H, a 0.25% sales tax dedicated to addressing the 

homelessness crisis and the shortage of affordable housing. Measure H is scheduled to sunset in 2027 and has 

since been replaced by Measure A, a half-cent sales tax. As of August 2025, the South Bay Cities Council of 

Governments (SBCCOG) has begun receiving Measure A funding and is using those funds for programming in 

the 2025–2026 fiscal year. 

The initial Measure H allocation totaled $4,563,786 and was distributed through Local Solutions funding to 

support local programs and resources. With the transition to Measure A now underway, the SBCCOG has 

developed a revised budget for the remaining Measure H funds. This approach has been updated to prioritize 

programs deemed critical and in need of additional resources to maintain capacity and stability through the end 

of the fiscal year. 

Below are the programs that continue to be supported by Measure H, along with the proposed reallocations 

needed to consolidate remaining funds and sustain essential regional programming.  

The SBCCOG staff is recommending the following modification of Measure H allocation:  

1. Client Aid – No change; this program provides funding for the needs of clients, including security 

deposits, application fees, and transportation expenses. This program remains funded under Measure A. 

2. Beach Cities Case Management (Manhattan Beach/Harbor Interfaith): This program is now being 

fully funded by Measure A. Remaining funds for this Measure H program will be reallocated to other 

strategic needs. 

3. Hawthorne Intensive Care Management: This program is now being fully funded by Measure A. 

Remaining funds for this Measure H program will be reallocated to other strategic needs. 

4. Inglewood Coordinator: This program is now being fully funded by Measure A. Remaining funds for 

this Measure H program will be reallocated to other strategic needs. 

5. Gardena Coordinator: This program is now being fully funded by Measure A. Remaining funds for 

this Measure H program will be reallocated to other strategic needs. 

37



2 
 

6. Beach Cities Homeless Court (Redondo Beach): No change; this program provides funding for 

individuals at risk of experiencing homelessness through ticket relief and resolutions of misdemeanor 

matters. This program remains funded under Measure A. 

7. Shelter Operations and Construction: This program is now being fully funded by Measure A. 

Remaining funds for this Measure H program will be reallocated to other strategic needs. 

8. Motel and SRO Leasing: The budget for this program has increased to help build more capacity 

through the end of the fiscal year. This program provides interim shelter for individuals who are waiting 

for permanent housing placement or connections to other programs.  

9. SHARE HOUSING TO EMPLOYMENT: This program is now being fully funded by Measure A. 

Remaining funds for this Measure H program will be reallocated to other strategic needs while 

maintaining funding match housing deposit for proposition 1 award to be utilized at a later date. 

10. Time Limited Subsidies: The budget for this program has increased to help build more capacity 

through the end of the fiscal year, particularly as federal and county funding are in deficit. This program 

provides temporary relief for individuals who need rental assistance.  

11. Document Specialist: This program is now being fully funded by Measure A. Remaining funds for this 

Measure H program will be reallocated to other strategic needs. 

12. Housing Focused Case Management: The budget for this program has increased to help strengthen the 

capacity through the end of the fiscal year and offset the SD2 and SD4 funding deficits. Housing-

focused case management remains critical to getting people off the street and reducing overall 

homelessness. 

See below for the funding breakdown:  

 

After this budget modification is approved and completed as requested, the updated allocations and amounts for 

Measure H funds will be as follows: 

Client Aid  $66,523 

Motel & SRO $305,000 

Measure H Carry-Over Funds Approved Balance
Client Aid Flexible Funds 385,000.00$      66,523.53$        
Beach Cities Case Management (Harbor Interfaith) 332,672.00$      15,372.22$        
Hawthorne Intensive Care Management 543,000.00$      38,082.80$        
Inglewood Coordinator 185,000.00$      74,178.84$        
Gardena Coordinator 200,000.00$      37,050.12$        
Beach Cities Homeless Court (Redondo Beach) 180,000.00$      0.07$                    
Shelter Operations and Construction 200,000.00$      98,868.38$        
Motel and SRO Leasing 650,000.00$      210,273.62$     
SHARE Housing to Employment 1,075,000.00$  179,193.52$     
Tax Default Properties -$                        -$                       
Time Limited Subsidy 553,114.00$      459,608.59$     
Document/Transportation Specialist 60,000.00$         60,000.00$        
Regional Housing Retention Specialist -$                        -$                       
Housing Focused Case Management 200,000.00$      69,812.25$        
Total Program Operations Costs 4,563,786.00$  1,308,963.94$ 

Balance

38



3 
 

Time-Limited Subsidy $559,608 

Housing Focused Case Management  $257,832 

SHARE Housing to Employment $120,000 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

Recommend Board approval of Measure H Local Solutions Fund Budget Modifications and direct the 

SBCCOG  staff to amend the existing SBCCOG Measure H Local Solutions Fund contract with the LA County 

CEO-HI’s office to reflect this change. 

39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

40



 
 

 
 

South Bay Cities Council of Governments 
 
December 8, 2025 
 
TO: SBCCOG Steering Committee 
 
FROM: Jacki Bacharach, SBCCOG Executive Director 
                        Kim Fuentes, Deputy Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Environmental Activities Report – November 2025 
 
I.  PROGRAMS - TECHNOLOGY, PLANNING, & RESEARCH 
 
Energy Efficiency & Sustainability 

 
Regional Energy Network (SoCalREN) AGENCY SUPPORT 
Contract period is January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025 
Contract goal: Work Plan (including goals) underway for 2025

South Bay Cities Energy & Climate Recognition Program (SBECRP) 
The SBCCOG will be hosting the Third Annual South Bay Cities Energy & Climate Recognition 
Program Award Ceremony at a luncheon on Thursday, December 11, 11am-1pm, at the Harold E. 
Hofmann Community Center in Lawndale. Rita Kampalath, Chief Sustainability Officer for LA 
County, will attend as the keynote speaker. All elected officials as well as city staff who have been 
working with the SBCCOG on sustainability initiatives are invited. RSVP to Eleanor Murphy 
eleanor@southbaycities.org. 
 
Energy Efficiency Project Status: SBCCOG and SoCalREN project managers are working with the 
following agencies to advance energy efficiency projects: 

• City of Carson – The Heat Pump Water Heater project at Carson Park has been approved at 100% 
cost coverage ($10,398 in incentives). An Initial Measures List for Veteran’s Sports Complex has 
been delivered to the city by the SoCalREN.and they are waiting for city confirmation to move 
forward. A meeting was held to vet facilities for Capture the Cold technology – SoCalREN is 
vetting the information. 

• City of El Segundo – The Wiseburn Aquatic Stadium pool heater incentive application is moving 
through the approval process. 

• City of Hawthorne – The Police Department lighting project and Memorial Center HVAC are in 
construction and reporting phases. The SBCCOG is working with the SoCalREN to develop a case 
study of these projects. The identified Heat Pump Water Heater project has been queued for 2026 by 
SoCalREN due to limited incentive funds at this time. 

41

mailto:eleanor@southbaycities.org


 

 
 

• City of Inglewood – The City Hall lighting and pump project is under construction. 
• City of Lawndale – The Capture the Cold HVAC technology proposal developed by Stasis and 

SoCalREN was delivered to the city and is awaiting city confirmation. 
• City of Lomita – The identified HVAC opportunities have been put on hold by the city. 
• City of Manhattan Beach – The SoCalREN is working to rectify schematic drawings as requested 

by the city for the Heat Pump Water Heater project. 
• City of Rancho Palos Verdes – Due to limited HVAC funds, the city is foregoing the Capture the 

Cold HVAC duct technology opportunities identified in last month’s audit. SBCCOG, SoCalREN, 
and the city are considering other projects for incentives. 

• City of Rolling Hills – Incentives have been identified for upgrading a Heat Pump Water Heater at 
City Hall. To move forward, the city must select a unit to upgrade and schedule a site visit. 

• City of Torrance – Multiple eligible HVAC units for Capture the Cold technology were identified. 
The SoCalREN consultants, Statis Energy Group, developed a proposal for the city which was 
returned in late November. Next steps and funding are currently being evaluated. 

• Lennox Elementary School District – Lighting upgrades at five schools are moving forward under 
the Metered Savings Program. The district is also installing more free Heat Pump Water Heaters.

 
Energy Resilience Action Plan (ERAP) Program – The SBCCOG is working with the cities of Gardena, 
Hawthorne, Lomita, and Manhattan Beach to develop Energy Resilience Action Plans – which 
review city-specific near- to long-term community energy resilience strategies.  This work also includes 
development of a retrofit plan to transform city owned facilities into community resilience centers and 
will provide a collection of resilience planning resources and references. The final ERAP plans will be 
delivered to participating cities by the end of the year. 
 
Facility Equipment Inventory Program (FEI) – SBCCOG staff continue to work with cities to update 
FEI workbooks to help them better understand current energy-using equipment. To date, 58 facilities 
across 15 South Bay cities, 1 school district, and 1 special district have been completed and resulted in 
identification of over 940,000 potential kWh savings from lighting retrofits and 112 HVAC units that 
are overdue for replacement.  From this work, staff were able to quickly facilitate installation of almost 
60 Heat Pump Water Heater replacements since 2023 with no costs to the agency.  In addition, 
SBCCOG staff are facilitating installation of the new Capture the Cold ductwork technology offering (as 
low as $6,000 before financing with as much as 40% energy savings).  Currently, the workbooks are 
being updated to capture projects that have been completed by the cities and to add additional equipment 
replacement needs. 
 
FDEEE & Commercial Direct Install 
Through the SoCalREN’s new commercial programs, administered by Willdan and San Joaquin Valley 
Clean Energy Organization, the SBCCOG is implementing a pilot program for the Food Desert Energy 
Efficiency Equity (FDEEE) and Commercial Direct Install programs in the City of Gardena. These 
programs provide free energy efficiency measures and installation at hard-to-reach and low-income low-
access businesses. SBCCOG staff continue to conduct door-to-door outreach to eligible businesses. The 

42



 

 
 

team has audited 59 business facilities, and 28 projects have been signed on and are underway with 18 
projects installed representing $326,000 in incentives to date. 
 
Cool Roof Pilot 
Funded by the SoCalREN, the SBCCOG is working with AESC Inc., a technical consultant, to conduct 
a cool roof feasibility study. AESC-created and cities approved criteria ranked the 14 “most suitable” 
sites in Carson, Gardena, Inglewood, Lomita, Redondo Beach, and Torrance. The final report and site 
plans will be published in December. 
 
Regional Energy Network (SoCalREN) Multifamily & Kits for Kids 
Contract period is January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025 
Contract goals: Contact, track progress, and outreach to local community organizations; track number of 
virtual events held and attendees; distribute program collateral to local community organizations. 
 
SoCalREN Multifamily and Hard-to-Reach-Direct-Install Energy Efficiency 
SBCCOG staff are working to identify multifamily property owner customers for the SoCalREN 
Multifamily program. Contacts are being identified through Chambers of Commerce and city business 
lists. SBCCOG and SoCalREN will work to enroll eligible properties in this energy- and cost-saving 
program. SBCCOG continues to share co-branded materials at community outreach events. 
 
Kits for Kids 
Schools in disadvantaged areas or those that receive Title 1 funding are eligible to participate in the LA 
County Kits for Kids program, which provides free energy efficiency kits (LEDs, faucet aerators, and 
games) to third- and fourth-grade students to implement at home and $1,000 to teachers who implement 
it in their classrooms. SBCCOG staff continue to facilitate South Bay school enrollments into the 
program. Inglewood USD and Hawthorne SD are participating now in the Fall 2025 semester. Wiseburn 
USD is interested in participating in 2026.  Efforts are underway to conduct celebration events for the 
students and teachers in Hawthorne SD in January 2026. 
 
Southern California Gas Company Energy Pathways 
Contract period is May 19, 2024 – December 31, 2027 
SBCCOG staff continue to work with SoCalGas to promote gas energy efficiency assistance program 
opportunities and financing support to cities, school districts, and residents. Current day-to-day activities 
continue with the support from SoCalGas staff. Program offerings and related marketing materials have been 
shared with agencies to support outreach to residents and businesses. 

• Restaurant Energy Efficiency Starter Kit: Kit includes energy- and water-saving tools such as a pre-
rinse spray valve, faucet aerators, gas valve handles, a Turbo Pot aluminum frying pan for efficient 
cooking, and a pocket thermometer for food service businesses. 

• Commercial Building Energy Solutions and Technologies (C-BEST) Program: Provides technical 
assistance and incentives for businesses to implement natural gas-saving measures in commercial 
buildings. 

 

43



 

 
 

Water Conservation  
 

West Basin Municipal Water District Programs (West Basin)  
The contract period is July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2026 
 
SBCCOG and West Basin staff met on November 13 to discuss the implementation of programs and 
lessons learned at recent rain barrel events.  SBCCOG staff also continue to respond to phone inquiries 
on the dedicated West Basin line. 
 
Educational Outreach Support - Exhibit Events 
Contract goal: 100 exhibit events, presentations, workshops, networking opportunities, etc.   
Status of goal: 55 exhibit events, presentations, workshops, networking opportunities, etc.   
 
Support for Workshops, Events, & Webinars Educational Classes 
Contract goal: Up to 17 physical classes or virtual webinars   
Status of goal: 6 
 

Canceled: 
• Wednesday, November 19, 2025 - 11:00 am - 12:30 pm - Transforming Lawns: A Sustainable 

Approach, Darby Park - Inglewood 
 
Rain Barrel Giveaway  
Contract goal: 6 Rain barrel distribution events.   
Status of goal: 6 Rain barrel program distributions: 
Completed:  

• Saturday, September 13, Rain Barrel Program City of El Segundo 
• Saturday, September 27, Rain Barrel Program City of Carson 
• Saturday, October 4, Rain Barrel Program City of Lawndale 
• Saturday, October 11, Rain Barrel Program City of Culver City  
• Saturday, November 1, Rain Barrel Program City of Inglewood 
• Saturday, November 22, Rain Barrel Program City of Malibu 

 
Water Replenishment District of Southern California (WRD)  
The contract period is January 1-December 31, 2026 
Contract goal: promote WRD programs and support in-person events 
Status of goal: ongoing 
 
Ongoing promotion of WRD programs continues through SBCCOG’s e-newsletters and social media 
channels. SBCCOG also posts WRD events on its website and sends e-blasts to help boost attendance. 
Staff attend events and distribute marketing materials to city halls, libraries, senior centers, and other 
community locations. In addition, SBCCOG staff support WRD staff by promoting and attending the 
Eco-Gardening Classes.  

44



 

 
 

 
Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts (LACSD)  
The contract period is January 1-December 31, 2026 
 
Educational Outreach Support - Exhibit Events 
Contract goal: 100 exhibit events, presentations, workshops, networking opportunities, etc.   
Status of goal: 57 exhibit events, presentations, workshops, networking opportunities, etc.   
 
Ongoing promotion of LACSD programs continues through SBCCOG’s e-newsletters and social media 
channels as well as website postings of LACSD events and sending e-blasts to help boost attendance. 
Staff attend events and distribute marketing materials to city halls, libraries, senior centers, and other 
community locations.  
Task - Speakers Bureau  
Contract goal: identify and coordinate up to 3 speaking opportunities.  
Status of goal: 2/3 Identified and Scheduled 

• Carson Gardena Dominguez Rotary Club – Scheduled December 10, 2025   
• City of Torrance Environmental Quality and Energy Conservation Commission – Scheduled 

February 5, 2026 
 
Waste Reduction 

 
Rolling Hills Organic Waste 
Contract period is April 8, 2024 – April 1, 2026 
 
The SBCCOG continues to work with the City of Rolling Hills to provide public education and outreach 
to residents on organic waste recycling and food waste prevention. Funded by a CalRecycle SB 1383 
grant, the technical consultant, EcoNomics, Inc., has developed outreach materials and conducted two 
workshops. Purchasing and distribution of organic waste equipment will continue throughout the 
remainder of this year and into the new year.  In addition, EcoNomics is developing educational videos 
to be shared with residents.  Videos are expected to be completed by Dec. 23. 
 
Green Business 

 
South Bay Green Business Assist Program (GBAP): Ongoing 
The SBCCOG continues to provide information to local businesses on opportunities to implement 
sustainability programs while maintaining relationships and communication channels. Businesses 
receive information on the status of SBCCOG utility partners’ programs and information posted on the 
SBCCOG website through a quarterly e-newsletter.  
 
GBAP by city: Carson (18), El Segundo (55), Gardena (55), Hermosa Beach (12), Hawthorne (83), 
Inglewood, (20), Lawndale (30), Lennox (10), Lomita (9), Manhattan Beach (10), Palos Verdes Estates 

45



 

 
 

(9), Rancho Palos Verdes (11), Redondo Beach (6), Rolling Hills Estates (6) Torrance (92), Los Angeles 
County – Community of Westmont (1) and District 15 (8) for a total of 435 businesses participating as 
of November 2025. 
 
Climate Action 

 
SBCCOG staff, with support from volunteers and prior CivicSpark Fellows, continue to work with cities 
to finalize the draft 2019-2020 greenhouse gas inventory (GHG) emissions reports. SBCCOG staff have 
completed 13 final reports which have been sent to cities and are posted on the SBCCOG website, and 
two more are currently under review by city staff. The SBCCOG’s ICLEI membership enabled Carson 
to access GHG data to inform future GHG emissions inventories and climate action planning efforts.  
 
Biodiversity grant opportunity: In support of the SBCCOG subregional adaptation plan, SBCCOG staff 
have been working with the LA County’s Chief Sustainability Office and Jacobs consulting firm to 
submit an application to Rivers and Mountains Conservancy (RMC) for developing a biodiversity plan 
with demonstration projects within South Bay. The SBCCOG submitted a concept proposal to RMC and 
received approval to submit a full Proposition 68 grant application by mid-January. 
 
CivicSpark Fellows 

 
Three CivicSpark Fellows service term will end in September 2026. Below are descriptions of each of 
their current work.    
 
Addie, CivicSpark Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Fellow is strategizing potential partnerships, 
supporting Commercial Direct Install programs and energy benchmarking, helping to plan Kits for Kids 
and the recognition program event, and developing SBESC and GBAP Newsletter content. 
 
Meghan, CivicSpark Communications Fellow is developing and circulating SBCCOG materials, helping 
to create and facilitate a communications working group with cities and partners, generating content and 
tracking analytics for SBCCOG social media platforms, and covering various SBCCOG events.  
 
Aaron, CivicSpark Transportation Fellow is supporting the SBCCOG’s Local Travel Network (LTN): 
conducting research on micromobility and NEV programs, analyzing mode-shift strategies, supporting 
outreach, assisting with data collection for behavioral studies, tracking legislation related to 
micromobility, and helping to develop communication materials that promote safe, sustainable, and 
accessible travel options throughout the region. 
 
Transportation 

 
Metro Express Lanes (MEL) (Contract period November 18, 2022 – November 17, 2025)  
South Bay events are being held both virtually and in person.  SBCCOG staff continue to prepare, update, 
and share the outreach calendar events to provide opportunities for Metro to share their Express Lane 

46



 

 
 

program.  In November, the SBCCOG/SBESC distributed MEL materials at two events. SBCCOG staff is 
working to execute a new contract for November 18, 2025 – November 17, 2026 that was approved by the 
SBCCOG Board in October.   
 
II.   VOLUNTEERS 
Status of Program: 52.5 hours for November 2025  
 
Some of the volunteer projects for November included supporting outreach events and SBCCOG 
meetings, updating databases, and conducting program research. The Volunteer Recognition Event was 
held on Thursday, November 20, 2025, just prior to the Board meeting. SBCCOG staff reviewed 
volunteer hours and recognized all volunteers as well as some who reached specific milestone levels. 
Cities were also notified when their residents, who volunteer with the SBCCOG, achieved these 
milestones so they could provide their own recognition. 
  
Additionally, seven new volunteers were interviewed and joined the program. 
 
III. MARKETING, OUTREACH, & IMPLEMENTATION 
 
Outreach Events 

In November 2025: 
3 - Networking Event   
3 - In Person Community Event  
0 - Business Event   
0 – Workshops Events 

47



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

48



49



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

50



CYBER Security 

Join the SBCCOG for a discussion to help
empower non-technical senior officials
(including electeds and City Managers) ensure
their agencies are well-prepared to defend
against today’s cyber security threats.

Who Should Attend
Elected Officials

Agency Executives
Cyber Security Leaders

Informative
discussion

City Managers

Chief Information Officers
IT Directors

Thursday, January
22, 2026 | 4:00 PM
HYBRID MEETING WITH IN PERSON PREFERRED

IN PERSON @ the SBCCOG Board Room: 357
Van Ness Way, #90 Torrance, CA 90501
VIA ZOOM:
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/Pdb
vWKhrQvi303rJe3oxNA 

RSVP 

51

https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/PdbvWKhrQvi303rJe3oxNA
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/PdbvWKhrQvi303rJe3oxNA
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/PdbvWKhrQvi303rJe3oxNA


CYBER Security 
sPEAKERS

Chris Carney is a former Member of the Congress (PA-10), where he was a member of the
Transportation & Infrastructure and Homeland Security Committees. He was also a
member of the Subcommittee on Intelligence, Information Sharing, and Terrorism Risk
Assessment. He is currently a policy advisor for clients with a focus on infrastructure,
national security, and cybersecurity. Earlier in his career, he served in the United States
Navy as an intelligence officer and Commander with operational responsibility for combat
mission operations. 

Supervisory Special Agent (SSA) Alex Storino has been an Agent with the FBI since 2008.
With over twenty years of Government service, Alex has specialized in Counterintelligence,
Counterproliferation, and Cyber investigation across threats from China, Iran, and Russia.
Today, Alex manages a cyber squad with a team of fifteen Agents, Intelligence Analysts, a
Data Analyst, and a Computer Scientist. SSA Storino is a certified FBI Digital Extraction
Technician, has ITF+ and Security+ certifications from CompTIA, GISF and GSEC
certifications from Global Information Assurance Certifications (GIAC) and is currently
pursuing a degree in Cyber Defense.

Derek Lazzaro is a City Council Member in Palos Verdes Estates and a three-time Chief
Information Officer (CIO), currently serving as CIO of Nossaman LLP in downtown Los
Angeles. He is also a member of Infragard, and one of the Infragard Los Angeles IAM Sector
Chiefs for Information Technology and Cybersecurity. Previously, Derek served as an IT
executive at the University of Southern California, where he was responsible for securing
some of the most sensitive systems at the university. He is a licensed attorney in California,
and has several professional certifications, including Certified Information Systems Security
Professional (CISSP) and Certified Information Privacy Professional (CIPP/US). 

52


	00_12.25 SBCCOG Steering Committee Agenda
	THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK copy 3
	01_11.25 SBCCOG Steering Committee Minutes
	02_Resolution 2025-4 RMC Grant
	THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK copy 3
	03_12.2025 Privacy and T&C Policies for texting
	THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK copy 3
	04_12.2025 Finance Analyst Job Description Memo
	05_12.2025 Legal Services with Jackson Lewis for HR and Labor
	06_12.2025 Cashiers Check for DCWMG Services
	THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK copy 3
	07_City Meeting Attendance - November 2025
	THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK copy 3
	08_Client Aid Recap Report - Oct and Nov 2025
	09_TLS Recap Report - November 2025
	10_12.2025 Memo for Measure H Budget Modification FY25
	THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK copy 3
	11_12.2025 SBESC Updates
	THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK copy 3
	12_Energy and Climate Award Ceremony Invitation 12.11.25
	THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK copy 3
	13_Cyber Security Flyer



